
BELLEVUE PLANNING COMMISSION
Thursday, February 26, 2026 6:00 PM
Bellevue City Hall
1500 Wall Street
Bellevue, NE 68005

1. CALL TO ORDER:
a. Pledge of Allegiance
b. Roll Call
c. The Open Meetings Act location
d. Approve Minutes of January 22, 2026 Regular Meeting
e. Accept into the record all staff reports, attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each 
application.

2. CONSENT AGENDA/PUBLIC HEARINGS:
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

a. Request to rezone Lots 1 and 2, R & L Acres, being a replat of part of the Northeast ¼ of 
the Northeast ¼ lying North of La Platte Road, located in Section 29, T13N, R13E of the 6th 
P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska, from AG to RA for the purpose of single-family residential 
development; and small subdivision plat Lots 1 and 2, R & L Acres. Applicants: Kenneth L. & 
Rhonda L. Gearhart. General Location: 16402 S 36th St. Case #’s: Z-2601-01, S-2601-05.

 
b. Request to amend Section 2.04, Zoning Ordinance, adding an agritourism definition, and 
Section 5.05.03, adding agritourism as a conditional use permit in the AG zoning district. 
Applicant: Tim Colby. Case #190.

4. CURRENT BUSINESS
5. ADJOURNMENT



MJINlU1rJE ffiDE(C(Q) ]Fill) 

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, January 22, 2026, Page 1 

The Bellevue Planning Commission held a regular meeting on Thursday, January 22, 2026, at 6:00 
p.m. in the Bellevue City Council Chambers. Upon roll call, present were Commissioners Aerni, Sims,
Hankins, Bennett, Ackley, and Taylor-Jones. Absent were Commissioners Perrin and Lasenburg. Also
present was Tammi Palm, Planning Director, and Angela Curry, Assistant Planning Manager.

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Sarpy County Times and 
posting in two public places and was also given to the Chairperson and members prior to the meeting. 
These minutes were written and available for public inspection within ten days of the meeting. 

Hankins announced a copy of the Open Meetings Act was posted in the entry to the City Council 
Chambers. 

Motion was made by Ackley, seconded by Bennett. to approve the minutes of the November 20, 2025, 
regular meeting as presented. Upon roll call, all present voted yes. Motion carried unanimously. 

Hankins asked if there were any updates or additions to staff reports. Palm advised there were no 
updates. 

Motion was made by Aerni, seconded by Lisa Taylor-Jones, to accept into the record all staff reports, 
attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each application. Upon roll call, all present voted yes. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Hankins explained the public hearing procedures. 

PUBLIC HEARING was held on a request to rezone Lot 1, Roth's Anderson Grove, Replat 1. being a 
replat of Lot 1, Roth's Anderson Grove. and Tax Lot 18A 1828 Exe Row, located in the Northeast¼ of 
Section 5, T13N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska, from BN and AG to RG-20 for the 
purpose of multi-family residential development; and preliminary plat Lot 1, Roth's Anderson Grove. 
Applicant: Foundations Development. LLC. General Location: NW Corner of S 36th St & Granada 
Pkwy. Case #'s: Z-2510-09, S-2510-20. 

Hankins asked staff for updates. Palm stated there were no updates and gave a summary of the 
request. 

Palm stated the request is for a preliminary plat and rezoning of a vacant property, Lot 1, Roth's 
Anderson Grove. It also includes a parcel with the previous private street that served the adjacent 
elementary school and was vacated after the South 36th Street improvements and the installation of 
South 37th Street and Granada. The applicant is proposing a change of zone to RG-20 (General 
Residential), which would facilitate a multifamily residential development. He intends to construct a 
single multi-story building for senior housing, some of which will be affordable and some market-rate. 
Staff has reviewed this request, and Public Works has also reviewed it. One item of note is that the 
applicant's access would be taken from South 36th Street, which has been coordinated with the Public 
Works Department. The applicant will continue working with Public Works on access as this case 
moves through the approval phase. Staff is recommending approval based on conformance with the 
Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations, and a lack of perceived negative impact to the 
neighborhood. 

Rob Woodling, 1886 S. 126th Street, Omaha, NE, was present on behalf of the applicant. He stated 

he is with Foundations Development. Woodling explained that, as Palm mentioned, the proposal is 

for a 38-unit senior apartment building, mixed income, with some affordable units and some market­

rate units. The applicant stated obtaining property to the south, previously owned by the Anderson 

Grove Elementary School, has allowed them to provide a buffer from the surrounding neighborhood. 

This also allowed for the construction of 38 units without the need to request for a higher zoning 

density. Woodling stated he was available to answer any questions and would appreciate the 

Commission's support. 

Mary Lou McEvoy, 11724 South 36th Street, Bellevue NE, appeared and stated she did not have any 

opposition and was not in favor either. She explained that approximately three-quarters of the north 

side where the applicant's land is located had previously been part of an agreement with Roth and 

Eric Rachwitz (prior landowners) that her driveway would tie in with their driveway. She noted that the 

applicant appears to be getting a separate driveway. McEvoy expressed concern that, as it stands, a 



MJIN101rJE JRIBC(Q)Jm 

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, January 22, 2026, Page 2 

fire truck cannot make the turn into her driveway. She thought that with the applicant putting in a 

driveway, perhaps that it would resolve the issue. She explained that if a fire truck could go over the 

applicant's land, it could make the turn, but otherwise, it cannot. She stated that so far, they have not 

had a problem, noting that a fire truck had come once due to a neighbor's carbon monoxide issue, 

but the firefighters were able to walk up the driveway without needing the truck. McEvoy said this was 

one concern she had, but since the applicant will have a separate driveway, she was unsure if this 

would be addressed. 

Palm responded that staff is aware of the previous agreement for shared access. She explained that 

initially, the property was intended for single-family residential use, then it was purchased for a 

veterinary clinic, which never transpired. Now, the applicant has a different proposal. Palm stated 

Public Works specifically requested that Woodling not share McEvoy's driveway and instead have a 

separate driveway, so as not to negatively impact her existing access. Public Works will grant the 

applicant separate access, so both parties will have their own driveways. 

McEvoy acknowledged the fire truck issue is a separate concern and asked if it would be addressed. 

Palm stated she did not know the answer and suggested McEvoy contact the fire department to see if 

there is a plan in case of an emergency. Palm noted this proposal does not resolve that issue. 

McEvoy stated that was just a question she had and hoped the situation would not cause any trouble. 

She then asked how many stories the building would be. Palm clarified there will be 3 stories. 

McEvoy stated she had no further questions, noting that she and the applicant had already discussed 

the required 30-foot landscaping barrier and that she was satisfied. 

There was no one else present to speak in favor of, or in opposition to this request. Subsequently, 
Hankins closed the public hearing. 

Ackley stated that the South 36th Street improvements affected existing homes that previously had 
direct access to South 36th Street. He asked if the issue with the fire truck was due to the street now 
being southbound only, making it impossible for the truck to make a 180-degree turn. Palm showed a 
historical photo on the GIS aerial which reflected the changes. Aerni stated the change to the driveway 
was significant. Ackley added the driveway used to be a more direct shot without a median. Ackley 
noted the goal of the South 36th Street project was to reduce the number of entrances, so when this lot 
was considered with the current neighbors to the north, one entrance made sense. Palm agreed, noting 
the project moved the roadway to controlled access. Ackley concluded the fire truck issue seems 
unrelated to the current application and is more of a city and fire department matter. Palm agreed and 
offered to connect McEvoy with the appropriate staff at the fire department. 

Aerni asked staff whether the applicant's access would be northbound or southbound only and if any 
lane openings were anticipated. Palm responded that the median would not change the lane 
configuration and that Public Works specifically requested access from South 36th Street rather than 
through the neighborhood or impacting the school. 

Aerni asked if there would be another round of review for final plat or site plan approval. Palm stated 
site plan approval is not required for RG-20 zoning. She noted the applicant provided a site plan for 
informational purposes only, as the proposal involves a single building on a single lot. Items such as 
landscaping and parking have been reviewed in part, but most civil engineering details will be 
addressed during the building permit process. Palm confirmed the applicant will return with a final plat. 

MOTION was made by Ackley, seconded by Yoder to recommend APPROVAL of a request to rezone 
Lot 1. Roth's Anderson Grove, Replat 1, being a replat of Lot 1, Roth's Anderson Grove, and Tax Lot 
18A182B Exe Row, located in the Northeast¼ of Section 5, T13N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County. 
Nebraska, from BN and AG to RG-20 for the purpose of multi-family residential development: and 
preliminary plat Lot 1, Roth's Anderson Grove. Applicant: Foundations Development LLC. General 
Location: NW Corner of S 36th St & Granada Pkwy. Case #'s: Z-2510-09, S-2510-20. APPROVAL 
based upon conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations. and the Comprehensive 
plans, as well as lack of perceived negative impact upon the surrounding area. Upon roll call, all present 
voted yes. MOTION carried unanimously. 




















































	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	a. Pledge of Allegiance
	b. Roll Call
	c. The Open Meetings Act location
	d. Approve Minutes of January 22, 2026 Regular Meeting
	January 22, 2026 PC Minutes

	e. Accept into the record all staff reports, attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each application.

	2. CONSENT AGENDA/PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	a. Request to rezone Lots 1 and 2, R & L Acres, being a replat of part of the Northeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ lying North of La Platte Road, located in Section 29, T13N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska, from AG to RA for the purpose of single-family residential development; and small subdivision plat Lots 1 and 2, R & L Acres. Applicants: Kenneth L. & Rhonda L. Gearhart. General Location: 16402 S 36th St. Case #’s: Z-2601-01, S-2601-05.
	3.a. Staff Report

	b. Request to amend Section 2.04, Zoning Ordinance, adding an agritourism definition, and Section 5.05.03, adding agritourism as a conditional use permit in the AG zoning district. Applicant: Tim Colby. Case #190.
	3.b. Staff Report


	4. CURRENT BUSINESS
	5. ADJOURNMENT

